
MISSION:   
The Pierce Joint Unified 

School District is committed 
to provide a highly qualified 

staff in a safe and healthy 
learning environment.  

Parents and community 
members are partners in our 

education community. 

 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

540A 6th Street 
P.O. Box 239 

Arbuckle CA  95912 
(530) 476-2892 * (530) 476-2289 Fax

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
PPIERCE TECHNOLOGY BUILDING 

940A WILDWOOD RD, ARBUCKLE CA  95912 

THURSDAY        NOVEMBER 19, 2020       5:00 p.m. 

2020/21 Board Goals: 
1. Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.
2. Pierce Joint Unified School District students will feel a sense of connectedness academically, socially, and

physically in their schools.
3. Pierce Joint Unified School District will engage families and members of the greater school community as

educational partners.

VISION: 
Every student will       

achieve their highest 
educational goals. 

MOTTO: 
Students First! 

AGENDA 
Governing Board 

George Green, President 
Amy Charter, Vice President Amy Charter, Board Clerk 

Abel Gomez, Member Barbara Bair, Member 

Documents provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the District Office located at 540A 6th Street, Arbuckle CA  95912, during normal business hours. 

Message from the Board President: 
This meeting is being recorded and may capture sounds of those attending the meeting. 

Pierce Joint Unified will hold its regularly scheduled board meeting on 
Thursday, November 19, 2020 at 5 p.m. 

This meeting will allow in-person attendance with limited capacity.  
Masks and 6 feet of social distancing will be required.  

The health, well-being, and public safety of community members, public officials, 
and employees remain a top priority. 

Please know that you may join the meeting by phone and/or video. 
Public comment will be included during this regular meeting and will be heard at 6 p.m. 

To join the meeting, dial  1-320-377-9818 and enter  PIN 296 623 003#  
(be sure to include the # in the PIN) 

Please remember:  to mute or unmute your phone, press *6 
The chat box will be monitored during the meeting, if you have a question or would like to speak, 

please use the chat box to alert the meeting organizer. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
A. Pledge of Allegiance

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA ACTION 

3. HEARING OF THE PUBLIC – 6:00 p.m.
(Speakers will be given three (3) minutes to speak with a twenty (20) minute limit per topic) 



Agenda November 19, 2020- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

4. 2020 Audit Report:
A. District Audit Report Fiscal Year End June 30, 2020
B. Measure B General Obligation Bonds Series 2016 Building Fund

5. Student Body Representative Report/FFA Representative Report

6. PRINCIPAL’S  REPORTS
A. Arbuckle Elementary School/Grand Island Elementary School
B. Lloyd G. Johnson Junior High School
C. Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

INFORMATION 

7. REPORTS:
A. Math Adoption Committee Report
B. Esports Report
C. Facilities Report

A. Solar Report
D. Transportation Report
E. Technology Report
F. 2020 Williams Settlement Agreement Compliance Report
G. 2020/21 1st Quarter Discipline Report
H. Learning Communities for School Success Program Final Progress

Report
I. Summer 2020 Elevate Data Report

INFORMATION/ 
DISCUSSION 

8. PJUEA (Pierce Joint Unified Educators Association) Report INFORMATION 

9. CSEA (California School Employees Association) Report INFORMATION 

10. Consider and approve Resolution 20/21 – 8:  Interfund Transfer to Clear Prior
Years Due To/Due From

ACTION 

11. Consider and approve District Audit Report Fiscal Year End June 30, 2020 ACTION 

12. Consider and approve Measure B General Obligation Bonds Series 2016
Building Fund Audit Report

ACTION 

13. Consider and approve December 11, 2020 as the Date for the 2020 Annual
Organizational Meeting for Pierce Joint Unified School District

ACTION 

14. Consider and approve Fall Sports Coaching Certification ACTION 

15. Consider and approve 2020/21 Safe School Plans for:
A. Arbuckle Elementary School D. Pierce High School/Arbuckle
B. Grand Island Elementary School Alternative High School  
C. Lloyd G. Johnson Junior High School

ACTION 

16. Consider and approve Ag Advisory Committee Membership:  Scott Sherburne
– Agri Business

ACTION 

002



Agenda November 19, 2020- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 

A. Arbuckle Elementary School D. Pierce High School/Arbuckle
Alterative High School

ACTION 

ACTION 

17. Consider and approve Job Description for Technology Support

18. Consider and approve 2020/21 Classified Salary Schedule

19. Consider and approve Esports Program at Pierce High School

20. Consider and approve Resolution #20/21 – 7:  Intent to Withdraw from Schools
Excess Liability Fund JPA

21. Consider and approve Resolution #20/21 – 9:  Purchase of (2) Electric School
Buses

22. Consider and approve 2020/21 Comprehensive School Safety Plan (Disaster and
Emergency) for:

B. Grand Island Elementary School
C. Lloyd G. Johnson Junior High School

23. Consider and approve Board Declaration of Surplus Materials – General
Equipment

24. Consider and approve Consent Agenda:
A. Minutes of October 15, 2020 Regular Board Meeting
B. Minutes of September 28, 2020 Special Board Meeting
C. Minutes of September 30, 2020 Special Board Meeting
D. Warrant List for October 2020
E. Interdistrict Transfers:

1. Transferring IN for 2020/21 School Year:
a. Fourteen (14) Students from Williams CA - continuing
b. One (1) Student from Willows CA – continuing
c. One (1) Student from Colusa CA - continuing

2. Transferring OUT for the 2020/21 School Year:
a. One (1) Student to Woodland CA – continuing

F. Contracts:
1. Architectural Services Agreement with Synthesis Partners, LLC for

Pierce High School CTE Ag Science Learning Center

ACTION 

BOARD POLICIES: 
A. FIRST READING:

1. E 1113 – District and School Web Sites 
2. BP 3280 – Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property 
3. BP/AR 3530 – Risk Management/Insurance 
4. BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 – Sexual Harassment 
5. AR/E 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 – Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedures 
6. BP/AR 4157/4257/4357 – Employee Safety 
7. AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 – Work-Related Injuries 
8. BP/AR 5113.1 – Chronic Absence and Truancy 

003



Agenda November 19, 2020- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

9. AR 5113.11 – Attendance Supervision 
10. BP/AR 5145.7 – Sexual Harassment 
11. AR/E 5145.7 – Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 
12. BP/AR/E 6161.1 – Selection and Evaluation of Instructional 

Materials 
13. E(1) 9323.2 – Actions by the Board 

25. Items to be agendized for the next regular meeting:

26. Superintendent’s Report

27. Board President Report

28. CLOSED SESSION: ACTION 
A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT:  Pursuant to Government Code sec. 54957, the

Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to discuss employee matters:
Certification Position Status 
Certificated 1st Grade Teacher Hiring 
Certificated Long Term Substitute – 4th Grade Hiring 
Classified Campus Supervisor Resignation 
Certificated PE Teacher Hiring 
Certificated Long Term Substitute Math (2) Hiring 
Coach Volleyball Helper (2) Volunteer 
Coach Football Helper Volunteer 
Coach Fresh/Soph Football Assistant Coach Hiring 
Coach Varsity Football Assistant Coach Resignation 
Coach Varsity Football Assistant Coach Hiring 
Classified District Mechanic Hiring 
Classified Health Clerk Resignation 
Classified Health Clerk Hiring 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / DISMISSAL / RELEASE:  Pursuant to
Government Code sec. 54957, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to
discuss public employee discipline/dismissal/release

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR:  Pursuant to Government
Code sec. 54957.6, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to give
direction to Agency Negotiator, Carol Geyer, regarding negotiations with
PJUEA (Pierce Joint Unified Educators Association) and CSEA (California
School Employees Association)

29. OPEN SESSION:  Report ACTION taken in CLOSED SESSION: ACTION 
A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT:  Pursuant to Government Code sec. 54957, the

Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to discuss employee matters:
Certification Position Status 
Certificated 1st Grade Teacher Hiring 
Certificated Long Term Substitute – 4th Grade Hiring 
Classified Campus Supervisor Resignation 

004



Agenda November 19, 2020- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

Certificated PE Teacher Hiring 
Certificated Long Term Substitute Math (2) Hiring 
Coach Volleyball Helper (2) Volunteer 
Coach Football Helper Volunteer 
Coach Fresh/Soph Football Assistant Coach Hiring 
Coach Varsity Football Assistant Coach Resignation 
Coach Varsity Football Assistant Coach Hiring 
Classified District Mechanic Hiring 
Classified Health Clerk Resignation 
Classified Health Clerk Hiring 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / DISMISSAL / RELEASE:  Pursuant to
Government Code sec. 54957, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to
discuss public employee discipline/dismissal/release

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR:  Pursuant to Government
Code sec. 54957.6, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to give
direction to Agency Negotiator, Carol Geyer, regarding negotiations with
PJUEA (Pierce Joint Unified Educators Association) and CSEA (California
School Employees Association)

30. Adjourn

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the Board meeting room or to otherwise participate at 
this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact our office at (530) 476-2892 x13000.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board meeting.  (Government Code § 54954.2) 

005



006



007



008



009



010



011



012



013



014



015



016



017



018



019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



094



095



096



097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



PIERCE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION #20/21 – 9: 
 

Purchase of (2) Electric School Buses 
 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Board (the “Board”) of the Pierce Joint Unified School 
District (the “District”) has determined that a true and very real need exists for the acquisition of 
one (2) Zero Emissions Blue Bird Electric School Buses; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the governing board of a school district may under Section 20118 of the 
California Public Contract Code, without advertising for bids, if the board has determined it to be 
in the best interest of the district, authorize by contract, lease, requisition or purchase order, any 
public corporation or agency to lease data-processing equipment, purchase materials, supplies, 
equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, services and other personal property for the district in 
the manner in which the public corporation is authorized by law to lease or purchase; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of the District has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
District to purchase two Blue Bird T3RE3904S 315 HP, 78 passenger electric school buses from 
A to Z Bus Sales, Inc. through a bid procured by Waterford Unified School District Board Action 
on November 10, 2016 with two additional one-year contract extensions effective until December 
31, 2020 (“Purchase Contract”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of the District has been awarded a bus replacement grant from 
North Coast Air Quality District in sufficient amount to fund the proposed Electric School Bus 
purchases; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of the District has determined that this Purchase Contract is the 
most economical means for providing the Property to the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the District Board hereby finds, determines, declares, and resolved 
as follows: 
 

Section 1: All of the recitals set forth above are true and correct and the Board so 
finds and determines. 

 
Section 2: The Board hereby finds and determines the acquisition of the Property 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20118 to be in the best interest 
of the District. 

 
Section 3: The Board hereby finds and determines the Purchase Contract provides 

the most economical means for providing the Property to the District. 
 
Section 4: The Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee is hereby authorized 

and directed to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and 
all documents which they may, in consultation with legal counsel, deem 

227 



necessary or advisable in order to consummate this transaction and 
otherwise carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent 
of this Resolution. 

 
Section 5: this Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its adoption. 
 

 
APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Pierce Joint Unified 
School District, Colusa County, State of California, this 19th day of November, 2020 by the 
following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
        ____________________________________ 
        President of the Governing Board of  
        Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 
 

228 



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

President George Green called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Members Present:  Nadine High, George Green, Abel Gomez, 

Amy Charter, and Barbara Bair 

Absent: None.  

Others Present:  Carol Geyer, Daena Meras, Melanie Brackett.  

Laura Hansen, Jessica Geierman, Dave Vujovich, Several 

participants via telephone and/or video. 

 

      A.  Pledge of Allegiance 

Abel Gomez led the Pledge of Allegiance  

 2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

A motion was made by Mrs. Charter and seconded by Mrs. High 

to approve the agenda.  Voting Aye:  Mr. Gomez, Mr. Green, Mrs. 

High, Mrs. Charter, and Mrs. Bair.  Voting No: None.  Absent: 

None. 

 

 3.  HEARING OF THE PUBLIC – Hearing of the 

Public will begin at 6:00 p.m. 
     (Speakers will be given three (3) minutes to speak with a twenty 

     (20) minute limit per topic) 
The fact that Colusa County moved from the purple tier to the red 
tier was reported and schools reopening was a focus of the public 
comments.   Opening the schools as soon as possible was 
mentioned.  Mr. Green noted that the schools are eager to open and 
the district is having discussions regarding opening the schools.  
Safety for staff and students was also a focus of the public 
comments by several participants.  Being prepared for students to 
arrive with new desks, new filtration systems, and discipline issues 
when students do not follow safety protocols was also a topic of 
discussion.  There was further discussion regarding internet 
reliability once students are both in class and distance learning.  
The process for temperature checks and entering school was also 
discussed as well as the grade of masks that will be utilized by staff 
and students.  Regular COVID testing was also discussed.  The 
inequity between elementary teachers being allowed to teach from 
home with a doctor’s note, and the junior high and high school 
teachers not being allowed the same was brought up.  Mrs. Geyer 
reported that there are no staff members at the elementary school 

 

Governing Board: 

George Green, President 

Amy Charter, Vice President Abel Gomez, Clerk 

Barbara Bair, Member Nadine High, Member 

Pierce Joint Unified School District            

 540-A 6th Street      Arbuckle, CA 95912 

(530) 476-2892 * FAX (530) 476-2289 

Thursday October 15 2020   5:00 pm 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

Technology Building 

940A Wildwood Road, Arbuckle CA  95912 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

332 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
2 

teaching from home due to a doctor’s note.  She outlined the 
teachers who are distance learning vs. in person due to the number 
of students who chose to continue distance learning.  There was 
further discussion regarding teaching from home when a doctor’s 
note is provided and what kind of leave would need to be used.  
Support was given by parents to return to in person attendance.   It 
was reported that students with F’s would not be allowed to 
continue on distance learning and would be forced to return to in 
person learning.  Mrs. Geyer clarified that if distance learning is 
failing a student, and they are unable to participate fully, distance 
learning could be taken away and they would need to attend in 
person for more support.  She reported that in the case of medical 
necessity, a student would be placed on home hospital to 
accommodate their medical needs.   
 4.  Student Body Representative/FFA 

Representative Report 

Katie Williams introduced herself to the Board as the 2020/21 FFA 
Arbuckle Chapter President and the 2020/21 ASB Vice-President.  
She stated that she is reporting tonight in the absence of the 
2020/21 ASB President, Betsy Myers.  She reported that FFA has 
had two successful monthly meetings via Zoom.  Attendance has 
been comparable to last year’s meeting attendance while learning 
to adjust to a new meeting platform.  The October meeting 
showcased members and projects virtually and the officers would 
like to see this continue after returning to in-person meetings.  
There would normally have been 40+ freshman sent to the green 
hand leadership conference in Colusa at the end of September.  
Like many things in 2020, it has shifted to a virtual platform and 
will be pushed out in November.  Butter Braid sales began on 
Tuesday and will continue through October 30 with delivery set 
for the Friday before Thanksgiving.  She reported that TK-2nd 
grade students will be receiving pumpkins from the school farm.   
The pumpkins have been picked and will be delivered to the 
elementary school on Friday for TK-1st grade students, and on 
Monday for 2nd grade students.  FFA is participating in Chapter 
Highlight which consists of a short video outlining why the 
Arbuckle FFA chapter is so special.   The National Convention has 
been switched to a virtual platform.  The entire chapter has been 
signed up for the virtual experience.   She reported that while it is 
unfortunate that the conference cannot be attended in person, this 
platform gives more members a chance to experience the 
convention.  The Pierce Ag Boosters is hosting the 2nd Annual Pig 
Roast COVID style.  It will be a drive through dinner on Tuesday, 
November 3rd.  Tickets will be $45 and available to purchase 
online.  The student body has painted pumpkins and provided hay 
bales for spirit week that ACE hardware is sponsoring.  A 
scarecrow is being decorated and will be on display downtown the 

 

333 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
3 

week of October 26th.  The painting of senior parking spots went 
well.  All spots were sold for $20 each.  All proceeds went to the 
senior class.  Both FFA and ASB are excited about moving up a 
tier and are looking forward to going back to school. 
 5.  PRINCIPAL’S REPORTS: 

A. Arbuckle Elementary School/Grand  

      Island Elementary School 

B.  Lloyd G. Johnson Junior High School  

C.  Pierce High School/Arbuckle 

     Alternative High School 

Laura Hansen reported that tomorrow is the first day of school, 

again, at Arbuckle Elementary and Grand Island Elementary.  The 

staff is excited and nervous about returning to in-person teaching. 

She reported that the choice form went out last week to parents and 

she has been sending reminders daily to ensure participation from 

all parents/guardians   She reported on the reopening plan that 

includes arrival and dismissal procedures, recess and lunch 

procedures, and supplies that students will need to bring back and 

forth every day.  She stated that the choice form included a link to 

the reopening plan and distance learning information.  Parents 

were asked to choose either in-person instruction, or to continue 

with distance learning.  She outlined the number of students who 

would be returning and the number of students who would remain 

on distance learning by grade and site.  She explained how the 

grades would be broken up to accommodate all students both in-

person and distance learning.  She outlined the teachers who will 

be teaching the in-person instruction and who will be teaching 

distance learning.  She reported on the need for some teachers to 

teach concurrently due to a large number of students on distance 

learning.  She reported on which teachers will be teaching 

concurrently and outlined the tools that will be used to successfully 

accomplish teaching in-person and distance learning concurrently.  

She then outlined how the ELD teachers will be supporting their 

students.  She reported that Jeff has ordered headphones with 

microphones for students who will be receiving in-person 

instruction in the concurrently taught classes so they are able to 

hear the students who are distance learning.  She reported that 

zones for recess have been set and that teachers will walk students 

to their zones and the pick them up when recess is over.  She 

outlined how recess will look and how the P.E. teacher, Mrs. Pina, 

will be assisting at recess with games for students since the 

playground equipment cannot be used yet.  There is a TK, K, 1st 

grade “sneak peek” tomorrow where the students will attend school 

to get familiar with the site.  They will also receive their pumpkins 

from the PHS farm.  2nd through 5th grade will have a transitional 

day on Friday.  Since the schedules will need to change some 

students will have a different teacher starting Monday.  Friday will 

 

334 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
4 

be an opportunity for teachers to say goodbye to some students and 

introduce themselves to any new students and to let them know 

about expectations.  The after school program will start on Monday 

from 1:30 – 3:45 and will be separated by grades at both 

elementary schools.  Temperatures will be checked on all students 

before entering the after school program classrooms.  She reported 

that the Kindness Challenge that was started two years ago will 

continue with a bonus this year.  Mrs. Lopez has been reading 

books to students and sharing self-regulation strategies at both 

schools.  She outlined the great things that Mrs. Lopez is doing 

with students and reported that this week’s book is called When I 

Wear My Mask.  It helps children understand the importance of 

wearing a mask and that wearing one shouldn’t have to stop anyone 

from being themselves.  She reported that the staff is excited and 

can’t wait to hear student’s laughter at the schools again.  Mrs. 

Charter asked if the classroom enrollment numbers would hold this 

way until December.  Mrs. Hansen responded that when the junior 

high and high school open, parents will have the opportunity to 

change their minds and send their student to in-person instruction 

at that time.  

 

Jessica Geierman reported that the first quarter is finishing up at 

Lloyd G. Johnson Junior High and teachers are entering grades into 

Aeries.  She reported on the extra work that teachers are doing to 

support kids during the 1st quarter while they are still adjusting to 

distance learning.  She reported that yesterday she met with the 

staff regarding reopening now that the county has moved from 

purple to red and what will that look like at the junior high.  She 

reported on the thought process that has gone into looking at the 

reopening plan for JJH and how it takes several people to think 

about all aspects of the reopening process.  She reported that it will 

be exciting to see students on campus.  She was able to do walk 

throughs of all of the virtual classes this week.  She reported that it 

was amazing to see the high quality lessons that teachers are 

producing and how students are adjusting to using technology to  

communicate.  She has completed three formal observations on 

new teachers and reported that they are doing fantastic.  She 

reported that professional development is focusing on ELD and 

stated that a shift will take place now that reopening is being 

discussed.  She stated that the professional development should 

meet the teacher’s needs and reported on how those needs will 

change as the situation changes and students return to the 

classroom.  One cohort is still being hosted on campus as well as 

one special education class with one more special education class 

to begin soon.  She thanked the cohort supervisors for supporting 

the students who are on campus.  She also gave a huge thank you 

335 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
5 

to the custodial staff for all they have done to keep the campus 

clean.  She appreciates their support.   

 

Dave Vujovich reported that it’s been a busy week at Pierce High 

School with the end of the first quarter and grades being due on 

Monday.  Last Tuesday the first school site council meeting was 

held virtually.  He outlined the schedule of future meetings.  He 

reported there are seven candidates for the empty seat on the school 

site council.  Tuesday night was the ag advisory meeting where 

there was great discussion regarding committee activities.  Mr. 

Vujovich gave a brief CTIEG update at the meeting.  Wednesday 

was the weekly counseling cohort meeting.  This is a time then the 

district counselors come together to discuss any problems that they 

are seeing with students not engaging, or not completing 

assignments.  How to resolve the problems and give support to 

those students discussed in the weekly meeting.  He reported that 

this meeting has been taking place for the past few weeks.  

Wednesday’s staff meeting focused on reopening with very good 

discussion and ideas.  Next Tuesday is the Freshman parent night.  

All parents have been sent emails and school messenger 

notification will be sent.  A senior night was held a couple of days 

ago.  Fall sports practices can start on Monday, December 14th.  

Schedules are set.  The first volleyball game is December 28th.  The 

first football game is January 8th at home.  The gym lobby floor is 

complete.  He reported on the status of the locker room project and 

the layout of the offices.  He thanked the custodial staff at PHS for 

all that they have done to keep the campus clean and for all that 

they have done to ensure that the campus will be able to open.  Mrs. 

Bair asked if PSAT’s would be rescheduled.  There was discussion 

regarding the schedule of PSAT’s and that the new dates have not 

been announced but he believes it will be late January or early 

February.  Mr. Vujovich reported that there will be one non-league 

football game and unfortunately there will be no Rice Bowl this 

year.  He reported on sports schedules and outlined how playoffs 

will work.  Mrs. Bair asked if conditioning could start before the 

14th of December when official practice starts.  There was brief 

discussion regarding how conditioning would be run and the safety 

protocols that will be put in place.  There was discussion regarding 

the timeline of practices for football and volleyball.  There was also 

discussion regarding cross country practice.  It was asked if the 

high school anticipates having a soccer season.  Mr. Barber 

reported on the shift in sport seasons for the 2020/21 school year.  

He reported that football and volleyball will be played in January 

and February, soccer and basketball will be played in the next two 

months, and baseball, softball, track, and golf will be played in the 

following two months.  All seasons will be shortened and 

happening fast.   

336 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
6 

 6.  REPORTS:  

 A.  Special Education CAC (Community 

Advisory Committee) Member Annual 

Report 

Griselda Jauregui reported on being a member of the Special 
Education Community Advisory Committee of which she is the 
chair.  She reported on the topics that are covered in the meetings 
and outlined how the committee helps parents understand the 
processes of the special education department.  She stated that the 
committee is a great source of support for parents.  She reported on 
the schedule of meetings and how the committee has been a great 
resource for her and her special education student.  Mrs. Geyer 
thanked her for representing Pierce district on this committee.    

 

 B.  Math Adoption Committee Report 

David Chun gave an update on the progress of the math adoption 
committee.  He gave a recap of the process and reported that the 
committee is nearly done with step one of the materials review 
looking at math content and practice standards.  He anticipates that 
the committee will have filtered to four publishers by the next 
meeting. The next step will be to start looking at the program 
components and what types of supports are built in for students and 
teachers.  This will bring the committee to two publishers to pilot 
and he believes the process is on track to begin the pilot in the 
spring.  He hopes to bring more information on the four programs 
that are being looked at now and potentially bring the two 
programs chosen to pilot to the next board meeting.  He 
commended the teachers who are involved in this process.  Mrs. 
Bair asked about board and parent review of the materials that are 
being looked at by the committee.  Mr. Chun responded that all of 
the programs being reviewed could be looked at by going to the 
publisher’s website, but once the committee narrows the programs 
down to two there will be a public release for feedback.   

 

 C.  Intervention and Prevention Counselor 

Report 

Cathy Lopez and Ellen Voorhees reported on the work they have 
been doing with students during distance learning.  Mrs. Lopez 
reported that they have done 157 home visits to students who have 
either had attendance problems or those whose teachers have had 
some concerns about grades or students not engaging.  Mrs. 
Voorhees added that home visits are also triggered by Securely.  
She outlined the Securely program and explained that the program 
monitors students activity on their Chromebooks and allows 
administrators to see what websites students are going to and 
emails they are sending.  This helps staff in checking for mental 
health issues and students needing support. They outlined some of 
the services that have been provided to students and families.   Mrs. 
Lopez added that most of the students that they have visited want 

 

337 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
7 

to come back to school and can’t wait until the schools are back 
open.  They reported on how all sites are working together and 
sharing information to ensure that all students that need support are 
being visited.  Mrs. Voorhees reported there is a high number of 
high school students who are helping younger siblings while 
parents are at work.  She and Mrs. Lopez believe that with the 
elementary schools opening under the waiver, it will relieve some 
of the pressure for the students who have been focusing on helping 
younger siblings.  Mrs. Voorhees also reported on weekly meetings 
held with administrators.  Mrs. Lopez then described the outreach 
that they have done and she feels blessed to work for this district.  
She reported that the entire district staff have come together to do 
what is best for students.  She gave examples of support from all 
employees from the custodians to the food service employees and 
bus drivers.   She reported on the buddy benches at the elementary 
school and thanked Mr. Burnum for his help.  She stated that the 
Parent Cafes will continue this year virtually.  She added that there 
will be a parent information night held with the Colusa County 
Sheriff’s Department regarding students visiting inappropriate 
websites and how parents can monitor student use of the internet.  
Mrs. Voorhees added that the resource officer has been a great 
asset in helping with attendance problems. She continued to outline 
different outreach strategies that they are using and resources that 
are available for parents and students.  She reported on the 
Counseling Corner on the district website where students and 
parents can access a form to contact the counseling department if 
they need support of any kind.  There is also a Virtual Calming 
Room that has different videos for meditation, mindfulness, and 
even live zoo cameras.  Something to take minds off of the current 
situation and relieve stress.  Mrs. Geyer commended Mrs. Lopez 
and Mrs. Voorhees for the great work they are doing and stated that 
they are a great team who care for our students.  
 D.  Esports Report 

Michael Barber reported that the district is exploring Esports at the 
high school.   He introduced Nick Green as the proposed coach for 
Esports.  He outlined Esports and explained it has been promoted 
by CIF for the past few years.  He outlined the video games that 
are a part of Esports and explained that it appeals to a large group 
of students at the high school and with distance learning he thought 
this would be a good time to look into the program.  It is 
competitive and is governed by CIF so all athletic rules would 
apply.  Mr. N. Green explained some of the Esports games and 
outlined the skills that students need to be successful at Esports.  
He also gave examples of opportunities for students in technology.  
With streaming and video production being more popular 
industries, Esports would give student a chance to see if this is 
something that interests them.  It also provides scholarship 

 

338 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
8 

opportunities.  Mr. Barber added that this would also give students 
who may not be athletic a chance to be involved in a sport and be 
a part of a Pierce team.  Mr. G. Green asked what the games would 
look like.  Mr. N. Green responded that the first game played would 
be Rocket League which is basically soccer with cars.  The second 
one is League of Legends where teams compete in a battle arena.  
Technology requirements and support were discussed.  Practices 
and tournaments were also discussed and it was reported that they 
would take place in the computer lab at the high school.  Mr. N. 
Green reported that there are several students who are interested in 
the program and he believes that there will be more once it is put 
in place.  Mr. Barber outlined the cost of the program.  Mrs. Geyer 
added that this program could attract students who may not be 
playing other athletic sports, or who are on teams but don’t get 
much playing time.  There was brief discussion regarding the 
games and that they could not include violence or shooting games.  
There was also discussion regarding the number of students who 
could participate in the Esports program.  Mr. Gomez added that 
he thinks it is a good idea for Pierce and would like more 
information on the program.  He would like to make sure that the 
games are appropriate.  Mrs. Bair asked about the timeline of the 
program and when it could start.  Mr. N. Green responded that it 
could starts as soon as next week.  Mr. Barber added that it would 
probably start in the spring season.  There was further discussion 
regarding recruitment for Esports and ways Mr. N. Green would 
get the word out about the new program.  It was advertised once in 
the daily bulletin and once approved will be placed back in the 
bulletin.  There was brief discussion regarding the daily bulletin at 
the high school and it was suggested that it be emailed to students 
and parents each morning.   
 E.  Facilities Report 

George Parker thanked the principals for acknowledging the 
custodial staff and the hard work they have been doing.  The past 
few weeks have been spent preparing for the opening of the 
elementary schools.  He reported on the activities that have been 
taking place and that the staff is optimistically hopeful that all will 
go well.  All buses are road ready through CHP and have been 
cleaned and sanitized.  Staff has also been trained on how to clean 
their buses.  He reported on new cleaning items that are being used.  
He gave an update on the progress of items on the projects list.  He 
reported that the locker room project should be done in a couple of 
weeks. He outlined the progress of the floor project in the gym and 
reported on the input received by staff on the logo in the floor.  He 
also gave an update on the timeline of the paving work at JJH with 
the potential opening of school.  He reported that the north gym 
upgrade project is in its final design and documents will be 
submitted to DSA next week.  He reported on the timeline of the 

 

339 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
9 

gym upgrade project.  He reported that he is going forward with 
the shade structure projects at AES and JJH and outlined the 
schedule.  He reported on a meeting that was held with the Ag 
Advisory Committee to begin planning what is needed at the 
school farm.  He suggested the formation of a committee to oversee 
the project from design to completion and reported that meetings 
will be held in November for planning.  He gave an update on the 
electrical project in the ag welding building and reported that the 
project will be put out to bid next week.  He outlined the timeline 
of the project.  He has confirmed with the State Office of Public 
School Construction that the state is going out for a round of bonds 
to help fund some of the unfunded projects on their list.  This will 
release the matching funds for the multipurpose room at the high 
school.  He reported on the timeline of the application process to 
receive the funds.  Mr. Gomez added that the facilities and grounds 
look excellent and thanked the staff.  Mr. Parker thanked him and 
reported that everyone is pitching in to ensure that grounds are not 
only safe for students and staff, but continue to be maintained.  
Mrs. Bair asked about the placement of the shade structure at AES.  
Mr. Parker explained where the shade structure would be placed 
just outside of rooms 5 and 6.  There was discussion regarding the 
placement of the shade structure.  Mr. Parker reported it is the best 
placement to not have to alter the building, and still adhere to the 
rules that must be followed when installing this sort of structure.  
There was further discussion regarding the activities that can be 
done under the structure during bad weather.  There was discussion 
regarding the shade structures and that they are all weather, metal 
structures and are more substantial than the shade structure 
currently behind Pierce High School.   Mrs. Geyer commended Mr. 
Parker for all the work that he does for the district.  She stated that 
she appreciated him and his staff.   
 F.  Transportation Report 

Mrs. Geyer reported that District Mechanic, Bill Taylor is retiring 
with Friday being his last day. Applications are being accepted for 
this position.  All of the buses have passed CHP inspections and 
are ready for school to begin. The drivers are working hard to get 
their routes figured out by tomorrow so they can be sent to parents 
and posted on the website.  She explained the consolidation that 
will happen with just the elementary students riding at this time 
and outlined the safety protocols that will be put in place for 
students as they enter the buses.  The transportation safety 
information was included in the reopening plan that parents 
received, but they will be reminded about safety protocols. She 
reported that on Monday there will be an additional adult rider on 
the buses to help go over safety protocols with students.  They will 
also help students understand what social distancing looks like at 
the bus stop while they are waiting for the bus, and how the 

 

340 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
10 

temperature checks will take place as they enter the bus.  Mr. 
Gomez asked about the third electric bus and if the district has 
received it.  Mrs. Geyer reported that the district will have three 
electric buses and two diesel buses on the road starting Monday. 
     G.  Technology Report 

Mrs. Geyer reported that hot spots continue to be picked up by 
students.  There are a little over 100 hot spots left to be distributed 
on a first come first served basis to students who reported 
intermittent internet service on the survey that was sent home.  She 
reported that a technology meeting was held and the Edunet project 
continues to move forward.  The district is looking at adding an 
additional person to the technology team to help parents with 
technology issues in a sort of help desk position.  She outlined the 
process to bring the job description to the Board.  Mrs. Bair asked 
about the current hours that the technology department is open for 
troubleshooting issues.  Mrs. Geyer reported that the current hours 
are Monday-Wednesday-Friday 1 – 4 pm.  She would like to see 
the hours expand to everyday.   

 

     H.  Williams Complaint Procedure Report – 

2020/21 1st Quarter  

The report was submitted to the Board.  There were no complaints 
and no question.   

 

      I.  Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 

Meeting Report 

The minutes from the September 14, 2020 Citizens’ Bond 
Oversight Committee meeting were submitted to the board.  Mrs. 
Geyer reported that the committee member the Board approved 
was seated at the meeting.  

 

      J.  Evaluation of 2019/20 Safe School Plans 

The 2019/20 Safe School Plan evaluations were submitted to the 
Board.   Mrs. Geyer reported on the incomplete data for the 
2019/20 school year due to COVID-19. 

 

     K.  Elementary Schools Waiver Report 

Mrs. Geyer stated that Mrs. Hansen covered this report in her 
principal’s report.  She added that bus routes are being worked on 
and staffing is being planned for the opening of the elementary 
schools.  There are current cohorts at the elementary schools that 
need to be re-evaluated now that students will be on the campus.  
Everyone is working hard and working together to make it work.  
She is confident that the teachers and staff are ready for students to 
return on Monday.   

 

     L.  District Reopening Status Report 

Mrs. Geyer reported that Colusa County is in the red tier and must 
remain on that tier for two weeks in order to be eligible to reopen.  
She reported that October 27th would be the end of the two weeks 
and that the district has been planning for the reopening.  Mrs. 
Geyer and Ms. Meras have been attending staff meetings at JJH 

 

341 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
11 

and PHS listening to concerns and ideas.   JJH and PHS principals 
each gave a report on the status of their reopening plans.  Jessica 
Geierman presented the different components that have gone into 
creating the reopening plan.  She reported on the staff meeting that 
was held yesterday with all JJH staff.  The staff talked about 
reopening ideas, schedules, fears, concerns, what they thought 
would work well, and resources for help when needed.  She 
outlined the parameters when planning the reopening and stressed 
that the plan is continuously being worked on as new information 
is learned or different ideas are considered. She reported on the 
health and safety protocols that are being put in place.  She talked 
about how to make it easy for students to transition between in-
person and distance learning and the estimated percentage of 
students who will return to in-person attendance.  She then reported 
on addressing learning gaps and how to identify them. She reported 
that she has learned of students suffering from sleep disorders and 
talked about the mental health of students whose sleeping habits 
are disrupted because of staying home due to the pandemic.  She 
outlined different road blocks students are experiencing during 
distance learning.  She outlined proposed adjusted class schedules 
which will keep students in cohorts.  She outlined the modified 
block schedule that will allow longer class time in order for 
teachers to better assess student learning loss.  The schedule will 
be looked at further and discussed by staff.  Mrs. Geyer outlined 
the block schedule further.  There was brief discussion regarding 
the block schedule and how it will reduce student stress levels with 
less subjects to organize in one day.  Terms and grading periods 
for the block schedule were discussed.  Jessica reported on how the 
daily schedule would look and outlined how lunch time would 
work.  Mrs. Geyer added that the free meal program for all students 
will continue until the end of the school year.  This will allow the 
district to offer each student a grab and go breakfast to eat while 
on breaks and in between classes to get them through to lunch.  The 
daily schedule was further discussed.  Mrs. Geierman reported that 
this schedule is a temporary elimination of the 7th period elective.  
She stressed that this would be temporary and the 7th period 
elective would only be eliminated for the remainder of this year.  
She reported on ways to continue the Spanish I class and stated that 
the teacher is willing to do what he can to keep the class going so 
the students can earn their credits.  She reported that the schedule 
is subject to change as new information is learned and that what is 
best for students is the number one thing.  She reported on what 
distance learning will look like once some students return to in-
person attendance.  Mrs. Geyer gave an outline of P.E. classes and 
how an intern will be used to help with teachers who teach at both 
JJH and PHS.   Mrs. Geierman added that there is a lot to look at 
and plan for and she truly believes that the ideas presented will be 

342 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
12 

what is best for junior high students and their families.  Mrs. Geyer 
asked what the next step is for the junior high.  Mrs. Geierman 
stated that she will be talking with the 6th grade teacher next to see 
how they envision their schedules.  The second thing would be to 
look at the idea of having two tracks in 7th and 8th grade and see if 
it works.  A parent spoke in opposition to the block schedule and 
was also concerned that the planning process for reopening has just 
started.  The parent asked what about the date the district is 
planning to open schools.   Mrs. Geyer reported that the district’s 
plan is to reopen schools on November 2nd.  The tier system was 
discussed and how if the county slides back to purple after schools 
have opened they do not have to close again.  Student cohorts and 
quarantine in the event of a positive case of COVID was discussed.   
There was brief discussion regarding moving to a full day of 
school.  There was further discussion regarding the timeline of the 
block schedule and if it will continue throughout the school year.  
Mrs. Geierman reported on the many resources that struggling 
students have access to after the school day ends.  Concerns about 
the block schedule were raised and how the educational deliveries 
will be different between the junior high and the high school.  It 
was asked how the 8th graders will be prepared to transition to the 
high school where they will not be focusing on only three subjects 
for a long period of time.  Mrs. Geierman responded that it could 
be looked at but there are a lot of junior highs with block schedules 
that feed into a high school with a regular schedule and how it is 
not an unusual thing.  She feels that with the change of COVID 
that the students will need extra support regardless of the change 
in schedule.   How the block schedule will affect special education 
students was brought up and Mrs. Geyer stated that special 
education services are being discussed in meetings.   
 
Mr. Vujovich reported on the status of reopening Pierce High 
School.  He reported that high school needs to keep to a more 
traditional schedule than the junior high due to different 
requirements that high schools have.  He reported that the staff 
unanimously voted to teach their classes concurrently to students 
who are distance learning and to students who return to in-person 
attendance.  He reported that he has been in contact with other 
schools that have already opened to see what has been working for 
them.   He reported on a staff meeting and stated that there are so 
many questions that there are no answers for yet. He stated that he 
believes students are so excited and eager to return to school that 
there will not be any problems with students refusing to wear their 
mask or not following the safely protocols.  He reported that the 
schedule will basically stay the same when students return to in-
person attendance.  He outlined the small changes in the schedule 
to accommodate cleaning between classes.  He reported that a 

343 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
13 

parent survey will go out asking if they will be sending their 
students to school in person, or remain on distance learning.  He 
then outlined the safety protocols that have been put in place and 
ones that are still being finalized.  He continued to outline the 
schedule and reported on the changes to Wednesday’s schedule.  
He gave examples of classes that could be offered for students who 
are struggling or are in need of intervention classes.  He then 
reported on teachers who are shared with other sites and how they 
will fit into the schedules.  Mrs. Geyer responded to questions 
regarding educational minutes and reported that 240 minutes a day 
is the minimum requirement.  That was counting synchronous and 
asynchronous time together and the district decided to do those 
minutes live in distance learning, and also when students return to 
in-person.  The extra time is needed to satisfy cleaning needs and 
gives planning time to the teachers.  She reported that this will 
continue until the end of the school year as the distance learning 
option is mandated by the state.  The PHS plan is in writing and 
will be sent to parents with the registration survey.  The junior high 
and high school will send out their surveys at the same time.  It was 
asked if there would be opportunity for parent input on the changes 
to the schedule and there was concern for special education 
students and consistency for all students.  There was brief 
discussion on what will happen during the 15 minute breaks 
between classes.  Mrs. Bair asked about band for the junior high 
students and if the program could continue.  Mrs. Geierman stated 
that she would speak with Mr. Rector about what the program 
would look like.  Mrs. Hansen reported that she has spoken with 
Mr. Rector about the continuing the music/band classes at the 
elementary schools.  Mr. Castaneda added that the state just release 
guidelines that allow for outdoor singing and band practice as long 
as masks are worn and social distancing is adhered to.    
     M.  AP Assessment Results 

The Advanced Placement test results were submitted to the Board.  
Mrs. Bair stated that she feels the rigor needs to be increased along 
the way and feels that the AP test scores could be higher.  Ms. Paul 
added that she took over the AP Literature classes last year and that 
it usually takes two or three cycles before there is any rise in scores.  
She reported that the students did significantly better under the 
current AP teachers and that their scores and their writing skills are 
rising.  She thinks it’s less about if they can pass a test that tends 
to be convoluted and specific and more that they are developing 
skills that will help them in college.  She suggested to start thinking 
about changing the AP courses to dual enrollment where students 
will get credit for taking the course, not just for passing a test.  

 

 7.  PJUEA (Pierce Joint Unified Educators 

Association Report 

344 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
14 

Kimberly Castro reported that the association would like to see the 
schools open in a well-planned out manner - safely and where 
everyone knows what is happening.  She reported there has been 
no chance for input on the reopening plans as an entire staff 
together.  Individuals were asked to give input, but not the entire 
staff.  She appreciates the presentation that was given on reopening 
plans, but it was not available for staff input before being 
presented.  She stated that the plan from the high school has not 
been received in writing and the association would like to have 
answers before the schools are allowed to open.  She stated that 
everyone wants the schools to be successful.  She is hearing people 
speak up in favor of opening schools, because that is what is best 
for students, but if we come back without thinking it through or 
having a plan it will not be a successful transition.  They would 
like to hear what the mask policy is, and stated that it needs to be 
more than masks will be worn.  It needs to be spelled out what the 
consequences are for being defiant and refusing to wear a mask or 
follow protocols.  She reported that when the question of will there 
be enough desks for all of the students was asked the answer was 
desks have been ordered, not if there were enough.  Mrs. Geyer 
responded that enough desks have been ordered for each student to 
have one.  Mrs. Castro also stated that she was told teachers would 
not be given time to set up their classrooms and would need to 
work it out amongst themselves.  She was told that classified staff 
would be responsible for marking the rooms and setting up the 
desks 6 feet apart.  She tated that it will be hard to set up classrooms 
when the number of students is not known.  She stated that the 
master schedule is changing and reported on the effects the 
changes have on the teachers who teach at both the junior high and 
the high school and how prep periods may shift.  She stated that 
this needs to be worked out so teachers, as well as students, know 
what they are doing.  She reported on class sizes where there is not 
enough equipment to accommodate all students and that there has 
been no schedules set up for cleaning computers in the labs and 
keyboards in the music room.  She reported that the isolation room 
has not been distinguished as publicized in the opening plan.  She 
advocated for the parents to have a transition period where students 
could try out in-person attendance to see if it is the right fit for the 
student.  She outlined her vision for this idea.  She reported on the 
use of the cafeteria for large classes and the need for it to be cleaned 
between classes if used.  She reported on a proposed change to 7th 
period and that teachers need to know what they will be teaching.  
She reported that screens for portables have been requested so that 
the windows can be opened.  She reported on leave request 
deadlines and that the deadlines come before teachers know if 
leave is needed.  She stated that she appreciates the committees 
that were formed to give input for the reopening plans and suggests 

 

345 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
15 

that time be scheduled for staff to meet and share ideas.  Mrs. 
Geyer has agreed to schedule time for this sort of input session.  
Mrs. Castro applauded the classified staff for all of their hard work; 
however, she is concerned that the number of classified staff has 
not been increased to accommodate the cleaning needs and asks 
the Board to consider hiring new classified staff to work on 
sanitizing the sites.  She stated that the unanswered questions need 
to have answers before the hard opening date in order for it to be 
successful.  She stated that she would like to see the collaboration 
in the district and community grow. 
 8.  CSEA (California School Employees 

     Association) Report 

No report was given.  

 9.  Consider and approve Resolution 20/21 – 7: 

Budget Revision 
Ms. Meras outlined the budget revision.  A motion was made by 

Mr. Gomez and seconded by Ms. High to approve Resolution 

20/21 – 7:  Budget Revision.  Voting Aye:  Mr. Gomez, Mr. Green, 

Mrs. High, Mrs. Charter, and Mrs. Bair.  Voting No:  None.  

Absent:  None. 

 

 10.  Consider and approve Consent Agenda: 

        A.  Minutes of September 10, 2020 Regular 

Board Meeting  

        B.  Warrant List for September 2020 

      C.  Interdistrict Transfers: 

      1.  Transferring OUT for the 2020/21 

School Year: 

                a.  One student to Sutter CA – new 

                b.  One student to Yuba City CA - new 

 D.  Contracts: 

     1.  Agreement with Eagle Architects for 

Pierce High North Gym Alterations 

Project 

     2.  Proposal from ESS Environmental for 

Pierce High North Gym Hazmat 

Sampling/Analysis 

3.  Agreement with Sierra Asphalt, Inc. for 

Johnson Junior High School Blacktop 

Repaving 

4.  Agreement with C&R Concrete for 

Arbuckle Elementary Concrete Pad for 

Outdoor Freezer 

5.  Proposal from Polar King Int. for 

Arbuckle Elementary Outdoor Freezer 

Installation 

6.  Architect Agreement with Synthesis 

Partners for Shad Structures at Arbuckle 

346 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
16 

Elementary (1) and Johnson Junior High 

(1) 

7.  Quote from Park Planet for (2) 40x60 

Shade Structures at Arbuckle Elementary 

(1) and Johnson Junior High (1) 

8.  Agreement with Integrated Inspections 

for Special Inspection of Shade 

Structures 

9.  Agreement with C&R Concrete for new 

PCC Parking and ADA Rams at Pierce 

High 

A motion was made by Mr. Gomez and seconded by Mrs. Bair to 

approve the Consent Agenda.  Voting Aye:  Mr. Gomez, Mr. 

Green, Mrs. High, Mrs. Charter, and Mrs. Bair.  Voting No:  None.  

Absent:  None. 

 

 11. Items to be agendized for next  

       regular meeting 

Esports Report/Action 
Audit Report  
Williams Settlement County Report 
Safe School Plans 
Math Adoption Report 
Coaching Certification 

 

 12.  Superintendent’s Report 

Mrs. Geyer shared a PowerPoint presentation for The Week of the 
School Administrators titled “17 Hard Things You Have To Do To 
Be A Great Leader”.  She recognized the principals and vice 
principals for all of the hard work and for the planning they are 
doing to reopen the schools.  She reported that a letter was received 
from Colusa County Office of Education regarding the district’s 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan.  They are not the 
approver of the plan, but make recommendations.  They submitted 
no recommendations.  She reported on the student teachers who 
have been hired as interns for the larger classes at the junior high 
and elementary schools.  She is excited to bring back the TK – 1st 
grade students tomorrow.  She thanked Mrs. Hansen for the little 
details that she did not overlook and for being the lead in the 
district on opening up her campus.    

 

 13.  Board President’s Report 

Mr. Green apologized for his confusion on the question regarding 

leaves.   

 

 14.  CLOSED SESSION:     

       A.  PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT:  Pursuant to 

Government Code sec. 54957, the Board 

will meet in CLOSED SESSION to discuss 

employee matters:   

347 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
17 

Certification Position Status 

Coach Varsity 
Basketball 
Head Coach 

Hiring 

Coach Fresh/Soph 
Volleyball 
Head Coach 

Hiring 

Classified District 
Mechanic 

Resignation 
 

  

      B.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / 

DISMISSAL / RELEASE:  Pursuant to 

Government Code sec. 54957, the Board will 

meet in CLOSED SESSION to discuss 

public employee discipline/dismissal/release 

  

 C.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR 

NEGOTIATOR:  Pursuant to Government 

Code sec. 54957.6, the Board will meet in 

CLOSED SESSION to give direction to 

Agency Negotiator, Carol Geyer, regarding 

negotiations with PJUEA (Pierce Joint 

Unified Educators Association) and CSEA 

(California School Employees Association) 

The Board went into CLOSED SESSION at 8:27 p.m.  

 15.  OPEN SESSION - Report Action Taken in 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board reconvened at 9:15 p.m. and reported action taken on 

the following: 

 

        

A.  PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT:  Pursuant to Government 

Code sec. 54957, the Board will meet in CLOSED 

SESSION to discuss employee matters:  

      A motion was made by Mrs. Bair and seconded by 

Mrs. Charter to approve the PUBLIC 

EMPLOYMENT.  Voting Aye:  Mr. Gomez, Mr. 

Green, Mrs. High, Mrs. Charter, and Mrs. Bair.  

Voting No: None.  Absent: None 

 

 

Certification Position Status 

Coach Varsity Basketball 
Head Coach 

Hiring 

Coach Fresh/Soph Volleyball 
Head Coach 

Hiring 

Classified District Mechanic Resignation 
 

 

        

348 



Minutes, October 15, 2020 - Regular Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 
18 

B.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / DISMISSAL / 

RELEASE:  Pursuant to Government Code sec. 54957, 

the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to discuss 

public employee discipline/dismissal/release 

      No ACTION was taken 

 

  

C.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR:  

Pursuant to Government Code sec. 54957.6, the Board 

will meet in CLOSED SESSION to give direction to 

Agency Negotiator, Carol Geyer, regarding negotiations 

with PJUEA (Pierce Joint Unified Educators Association) 

and CSEA (California School Employees Association) 

      No ACTION was taken 

 

 16.  ADJOURN 

The Board adjourned at 9:16 p.m. _________________________________ 

 Carol Geyer, Secretary to the Board 

of Trustees 
 

349 



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544


	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	District Audit Report
	Bond Audit Report
	Solar Presentation
	Williams Settlement Report
	Suspension Report
	LCSSP Grant Final Report
	Elevate Summer Report
	20/21-8
	AES Safe School Plan
	GI Safe School Plan
	JJH Safe School Plan
	PHS/ALT Safe School Plan
	Job Description
	Salary Schedule
	20/21-7
	20/21-9
	AES Disaster Plan
	GI Disaster Plan
	JJH Disaster Plan
	PHS Disaster Plan
	Surplus Items
	Sept 28 minutes
	Sept 30 mins
	Warrants
	Architect Agreement
	Board Policies
	1113
	3280
	3530
	4119.11
	4119.12
	4157
	4157.1
	5113.1
	5113.11
	5145.7
	5145.71
	6161.1
	9323.2

	Button1: 
	Button2: 
	Button3: 
	Button4: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button8: 
	Button9: 
	Button10: 
	Button11: 
	Button12: 
	Button13: 
	Button14: 
	Button15: 
	Button16: 
	Button17: 
	Button18: 
	Button19: 
	Button20: 
	Button21: 
	Button22: 


